ORIGINAL

FILED THOMAS D. HALL

MAY 2 5 2000

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

				CLERK, SUPRI	
C	CASE	NUMBER:	SC00-	912)
I	Lower	Tribunal	No.	5D98-2504	

DAVID M. POMERANCE and RICHARD C. POMERANCE,

Petitioners,

vs.

٠.

HOMOSASSA SPECIAL WATER DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Florida,

Respondent.

Petitioner's RESPONDENTS' AMENDED JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF

/

KAREN 0. GAFFNEY, ESQUIRE KAREN 0. GAFFNEY, P. A. 221 West Main Street Suite D Inverness, Florida 34450 (352) 726-9222 Attorneys for PETITIONERS

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The Court should accept jurisdiction of this action because the Opinion of the Court below expressly and directly conflicts with other decisions of this Court. The Opinion of the Lower Court fails to properly apply the basic principles established by this Court that the properly derives a special benefit and that the assessment be fairly and reasonably apportioned according to the benefits received. <u>Sarasota County v. Sarasota Church of</u> Christ, 667 So.2d 180 (Fla. 1995).

ARGUMENT:

Petitioners invoke the jurisdiction of this Court under Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution. The Opinion of the Court below expressly and directly conflicts with other decisions of this Court. <u>City of Boca Raton v. State</u>, 595 So.2d 25 (Fla. 1992); <u>Lake County V. Water Oak Management Corp.</u>, 695 So.2d 667 (Fla. 1997); <u>South Trail Fire Control District v.</u> <u>State</u>, 273 So.2d 380 (Fla. 1973); <u>Sarasota County v. Sarasota</u> <u>County Church of Christ</u>, 667 So. 2d 180 (Fla. 1995) and <u>Collier</u> <u>County v. State</u>, 773 So.2d 1012 (Fla. 1999).

The Respondent, in issuing its special assessment for the waterline improvements which are the subject of this action, elected to impose its assessment on a front footage basis taking into account only reductions for irregularly shaped lots such as the Pomerance property. The Respondent failed to take into account any land use regulations which rendered the developability of the property either nonexistent or

substantially impaired. In reviewing the Lower Court's decision upholding the Respondent's special assessment as applied to the Pomerance property, the Fifth District Court of Appeal misapplied the standards set and established by this Court in numerous cases. such, therefore, directly conflicts with this Court's prior decisions.

More particularly, in affirming the decision of the Trial Court, the majority opinion of the Fifth District Court of Appeal correctly recognized the basic principle that, "The manner of assessment is immaterial and may vary within the District as long as the amount of the assessment for each tract is not in excess of the proportional benefits as compared to other assessments on (See page 4). However, the court below other tracts." misapprehended and misapplied that principle in this case by declining to consider the impact of substantial land use This restrictions placed on the property by local government. case presents the opportunity for this court to affirm that under the principle which it has announced above, substantial land use restrictions should and must by the law of this State be considered in the determination of the amount of a special assessment.

Extensive land use restrictions resulting in substantial diminution of benefit are no different than irregularities of parcel shapes. In recent years, local governments in Florida have sought to circumvent constitutional and statutory limitations upon local governmental taxation by the increasingly aggressive

use of impact fees and special assessments to supplement their revenue needs. All revenue-producing mechanisms operate in the same mandatory manner and place the same burdens upon the ownership of private property. However, unlike ad valorem taxes which arguably consider regulatory burdens in assessed valuation, regulatory burdens were not considered by Respondent in establishing its special assessment.

In <u>City of Boca Raton, Florida v. State</u>, 595 So.2d 25 (Fla. 1992), this Court considered the requirements for the imposition of a valid special assessment. There, the City determined to construct a wide range of improvements in its effort to revitalize its downtown area and determined to obtain a portion of the money to pay for such improvements via a special assessment against downtown properties to be benefited by the improvements. Id. at 26. This Court, citing <u>City of Naples v.</u> <u>Moon</u>, 269 So.2d 355 (Fla.1972) held that a special assessment must confer a specific benefit upon the land burdened by the assessment.

This Court further stated that a special assessment is imposed "upon the theory that a portion of the community which is required to bear it receive some special or peculiar benefit in the enhancement of value of the property against which it is imposed as a result of the improvement made with the proceeds of the special assessment." <u>Id</u>. at 28. Citing <u>Klein V. Davenport</u>, 129 So.904 (Fla. 1930). This Court concluded that there are two requirements for the imposition of a valid special assessment and

opined that "the manner of assessment is immaterial and may vary within the District as long as the amount of the assessment for each tract is not in <u>excess</u> of the proportional benefit as compared to other assessments on other tracts. <u>Id</u>. at 31. The Court determined that the assessment was valid insomuch as the City properly determined its assessment not in excess of the proportional benefits derived by each parcel assessed.

Unlike the City of Boca Raton's assessment, in City of Boca So.2d 25(Fla. 1992), the Respondent's Raton v. State, 595 assessment made no attempt to fairly and reasonably apportion the assessment among properties receiving the special benefit nor did the assessment address the reduction in benefits received by properties subject to significant land use regulations. Accordingly, the Fifth District Court of Appeal in its opinion failed to apply this Court's standard regarding special assessments by failing to consider the proportional benefits of improvement to properties in relation to the significant the developability impacts of other land use regulations.

The Opinion in this case issued by the Fifth District Court of Appeal further conflicts with this Court's opinion in <u>South</u> <u>Trail Fire Control District v. State</u>, 273 So.2d 380 (Fla. 1973), <u>modified on other grounds</u>, <u>Sarasota County v. Sarasota Church of</u> <u>Christ</u>, 667 So.2d 180 (Fla. 1995), insomuch as the Court's decision conflicts with the requirement that the assessment must not be in excess of the proportional benefits as compared to other assessments on other lots and tracts affected by the

б

improvement. South Trail Fire Control District v. State, 273 So.2d 380 at 382. In Sarasota County v. Sarasota Church of (Fla. 1995), this So.2d 180 Court Christ, 667 accepted jurisdiction based upon express and direct conflict with South Trail Fire Control District v. State and other cases. In the Sarasota County case, Sarasota County adopted a County Ordinance which created a stormwater environmental utility and imposed special assessments to fund stormwater improvements and services. Id. at 182. This Court reiterated that a valid special assessment must meet two requirements: (1) the property assessed must derive a special benefit from the service provided; and (2) the assessment must be fairly and reasonably apportioned according to the benefits received. Id. at 183.

concluded that the Sarasota The Court County special assessment was valid and satisfied both prongs of the test for validity of special assessments insomuch the County carefully assessed benefit and allocated the same to developed properties and not undeveloped properties, finding that storm water contributions of undeveloped properties were far less significant. The Court determined that this method of appropriating the cost of stormwater services was not arbitrary and bears a reasonable relationship to the benefits received by the individual developed properties in the treatment and control of polluted storm water runoff. Id. at 185.

Unlike Sarasota county, the Respondent herein made no attempt to actually determine the special benefits to properties

located along the waterline and merely applied a front footage assessment with reductions only for irregularly shaped lots. The record is clear that the District made no effort to determine whether or not a special benefit in proportion to the assessment were received by properties such as the Pomerances which are subject to extraordinary land use regulations. Although the testimony at trial from expert witnesses and appraisers differed as to what specific acreage could be developed on the Pomerance property, experts for both parties opined that the wetlands located upon the Pomerance parcel were significant. The Appellee's expert further acknowledged that the only upland area for available for development was in the extreme rear of the property and would result in a requirement of access to be created from U.S. 19 (the location of the waterline) to the rear of the property in order for any development to occur. Accordingly, based upon the testimony below it is clear that no developable property on the Pomerance site directly abuts the waterline.

Legislature "cannot by its The fiat" make а local improvement of that which is in its essence is not such an improvement and cannot by its fiat make a special benefit to sustain a special assessment where there is no such special benefit". South Trail Fire Control District v. State, 273 So.2d 380. (Fla. 1973). See also, the dissent in Sarasota County v. Sarasota Church of Christ, 667 So.2d 180, 186 (Fla. 1995). While the front foot method of assessment as been held to be a valid

exercise of Legislative power to make and spread such special assessments (See, <u>Atlantic Coastline Railroad Co. v. City of</u> <u>Winter Haven</u>, 151 so. 321 (Fla. 1933, the fundamental requirement for the validity of a special assessment is that it not be in excess of the proportional benefits to the property assessed.

Herein, in sustaining the Lower Court's findings in this case, the Fifth District Court of Appeal concluded as follows:

The Trial Court found that the Pomerances did not prove by a preponderance of the evidence that there was no benefit to the property from the extension of water service to it. Because that finding is supported by the evidence, we cannot disturb on it appeal. See, page 4 of the Opinion.

This decision expressly and directly conflicts with this Court's cases as previously cited insomuch **as** the standard for the validity of a special assessment is not that the objector prove by a preponderance of evidence that there was <u>no</u> benefit to the property but rather that the assessment be properly apportioned as to the special benefit received by the assessed property. <u>Lake County V. Water Oak Management Corporation</u>, 695 So.2d 667 (Fla. 1997).

The services funded by the Special Assessment must provide a direct, special benefit to the real property being burdened. 695 So.2d at 670. See also, <u>Collier County v. State of Florida</u>, 733 So.2d 1012 (Fla. 1999). As Judge Harris of the Fifth District Court of Appeal noted in his dissent,

This case adds insult to injury... It is undisputed that because the property has extensive wetlands, the Pomerance property receives little or no benefit from the waterline but is assessed on the same basis as those parcels which have no wetland restrictions....Even though the District made an adjustment to the front foot assessment because of the configuration (triangular) of Appellants' property, it made no adjustment because of the severely diminished capacity of the property to support development which all the experts agreed exist because of the wetlands. In other words except for the <u>shape</u> of the property, Appellants were assessed as though their entire parcel was subject to the same development capability as were other parcels assessed on the same front foot basis.... The failure to consider these additional factors shows that the assessment on Appellant's property was not addressed in proportion to the benefit to be derived therefrom as required by Chapter 63-122, Section 17(A), which authorized the assessment. (<u>See</u>, Opinion at Dissent, Pages 1-2).

. '

CONCLUSION

Regulatory burdens, such as the undisputed existence of substantial wetlands on the Pomerance property, were not considered by either the Respondent or the Fifth District Court of Appeal. Herein, the Respondent should have considered regulatory burdens in establishing the amount of the assessments against the property. By failing to do so, the Respondent unreasonably affects the right of property owner to own, use and dispose of his private property. The Fifth District Appeal in its opinion failed to properly apply the requirements of the case law of this Court that in order to be a valid special assessment, the same must meet the two prong test set forth in City of Boca Raton v. State and its progeny. The failure to consider these factors further shows that the Fifth District Court of Appeal affirmation of this assessment expressly and directly conflicts with the caselaw of this Court as set forth herein.

I hereby certify that the size and style of type used in this Brief is 12 point Courier New, a font that is not proportionally spaced.

> KAREN 0. GAFFNEY, P. A. 221 West Main Street, Suite D Inverness, Florida 34450 (352) 726-9222 Attorneys for Petitioner By: Karen O. Gaffney Florida Bar No 500682