# **ORIGINAL**



#### SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

CASE NO. SCOO-912

DAVID M. POMERANCE and RICHARD C. POMERANCE,

Petitioners,

DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL, FIFTH DISTRICT - NO. 5D98-2504

V.

FIFTH CIRCUIT COURT CASE NO. 94-2070CA

HOMOSASSA SPECIAL WATER DISTRICT, a political subdivision of the State of Florida,

Respondent.

#### RESPONDENT'S ANSWER BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JACK A. MORING, ESQ. Florida Bar **No.** 499 160 Myers and Moring, P.A. 7655 W. Gulf to Lake Highway Suite 12 Crystal River, Florida 34429 (352) 795-1797 Attorney for RESPONDENT

## **ARGUMENT**

Petitioners seek discretionary jurisdiction of this Court under Article V, §3(b)(3), Florida Constitution. The pertinent provision authorizes this Court

to accept "any decision of a District Court of Appeal that expressly and directly conflicts with a decision of another District Court of Appeal or the Supreme Court on the same question of law."

Two categories of cases justify conflict jurisdiction: (1) the decision announces a rule of law that conflicts with a previously announced rule of law by this Court or by another District Court of Appeal; or (2) the decision applies a rule of law to produce a different result involving controlling facts that are substantially similar to those in a prior case. Mancini v. State 3 12 So.2d 732 (Fla. 1975). This Court will not accept jurisdiction because it might have decided the case differently from the District Court below, but only because the District Court decision facially so collides with a prior decision of the Supreme Court or of another District Court on the same point of law that it creates an inconsistency or conflict. Nielson v. City of Sarasota, 117 So.2d 73 1, 734-35 (Fla. 1960).

The conflict must be found in the Majority Decision below. In Reaves v. State, 485 So.2d 829 (Fla. 1986), this Court held:

Conflict between decisions must be express and direct, i.e., it must appear within the four corners of

the majority decision. <u>Neither a dissenting opinion</u> nor the record itself can be used to establish jurisdiction.

485 **So.2d** at 830 (emphasis added). The Petitioners fail utterly. First, they almost entirely rely on "facts" and claims not found in the Majority Decision. Instead, they improperly cite numerous facts they claim are in the record below, and conclude their Argument section at pages 9-10 with an extensive quote from Judge Harris's dissent. Second, the Majority Decision is in virtual **lockstep** with the allegedly conflicting authority.

The Petitioners contend two aspects of the Opinion below expressly and directly conflict with binding authority. First, they allege the Majority Decision improperly refused to reweigh the trial court's fmdings regarding benefit to the Property, which resolved conflicting evidence. Related to this issue, they claim the Majority Decision improperly refused to require express fmdings of benefit to the Property by the District. Second, they assert the "frontage-foot" assessment method is improper for assessing their Property for an adjacent waterline. Both arguments fail.

The Majority Decision cited, inter alia, this Court's decision in City of

Treasure Island v. Strong, 215 So.2d 473 (Fla. 1968), in concluding that it is not necessary to determine the benefit as to each property "when, as in the instant case, there is an inherent and obvious legislative determination in the enabling provision that the benefits flowing from a particular improvement are of the kind as would usually accrue to Property." **Id.**, cited in Opinion at 2-3. As the Majority Decision stated: "The burden is on the property owner to overcome the duel presumptions that a [water or] sewer system improvement is of special benefit to those in proximity to it, and that the legislative determination of special benefit is correct." Opinion at 3 [cit. om.]. The Majority Decision cited ACORN v. City of Florida City, 444 So.2d 37, 38-39 (Fla. 3d DCA 1983), rev. denied, 45 1 So.2d 847 (Fla. 1984). ACORN in turn cited three decisions of this Court in support of that standard. Id. The Majority Decision concluded the Petitioners had to rebut the presumption the adjacent waterline would benefit the Property. They failed.

Additionally, the Majority Decision cited <u>ACORN</u> in stating: "The factual conclusions of the lower court should not be disturbed when the judgment is supported by sufficient evidence in the record, and when both

parties had the opportunity to present evidence and expert testimony to the trial court." The majority properly refused to reweigh findings of benefit to the Property. See also, Mancini, 3 12 So.2d at 733 (finding no conflict in decision based on sufficient evidence).

The Majority Decision followed the allegedly "conflicting" cases. The Court below cited City of Boca Raton v. State, 595 So.2d 25, 3 1 (Fla. 1992), in holding that the front-foot methodology is one of the two "more traditional" methods of assessing for a pipeline project. Moreover, the Court below stated that the District's enabling legislation expressly authorizes the front-foot method. The Petitioners therefore cannot show the front-foot method was arbitrary, let alone that there was an express and direct conflict. See also, Mever v. City of Oakland Park, 219 So.2d 417,419 (Fla. 1969) (referring to "specific [legislative] authorization'for, inter alia front-foot assessments of abutting specially benefitted property).

The Majority Decision further comported with Lake County v. Water

Oak Mgmt. Corp., 695 So.2d 667 (Fla. 1997). This Court in Lake County

stated that a special assessment is only proper where there is a "logical

relationship" between the governmental service and the benefit to real property. The assessment must be "properly apportioned" based on the special benefits. The cases cited above establish a presumption that abutting properties specially benefit from water and sewer lines. The Majority Decision cited multiple authorities holding that the frontage-foot allocation method is presumed proper in this State.

South Trail Fire Control District v. State, 273 So.2d 380 (Fla. 1973), also directly supports the Majority Decision. This Court held that a reviewing court "should not substitute its opinion and judgment for that of the Legislature [or, presumably, any legislative body (see Opinion at 5, citing Sarasota County v. Sarasota Church of Christ, 667 So.2d 180, 184 (Fla. 1995)] in the absence of a clear and full showing of arbitrary action or a plain abuse." 273 So.2d at 3 83. The South Trail Court also extensively relied on Meyer, 2 19 So.2d 4 17, which granted great deference to assessments for sewerage line extensions. In Meyer, this Court upheld the lower court's determination of benefit, despite the property owner's conflicting evidence that the assessment would "be a financial detriment rather than a benefit to the property assessed." 219 So.2d

at 419.

The Petitioners' reliance on <u>Sarasota Countv</u> is similarly baseless. This Court in <u>Sarasota Countv</u> gave great deference to the assessing authority, clarifying <u>Meyer</u>, <u>South Trail</u> and <u>Boca Raton</u> in concluding: "[T]he legislative determination as to the existence of special benefits and as to the apportionment of the costs of those benefits should be upheld unless the determination is arbitrary." 667 **So.2d** at 184.

While the Petitioners baldly assert the decision below conflicts with Collier County v. State, 733 So.2d 1012 (Fla. 1999), they merely mention Collier in a "Sechaeso," reference catfpage O. f a i l t o s h o w a n y conflict with Collier. Regardless, the Majority Decision below followed this Court's standards as elucidated in Collier.

Finally, the District objects to the Petitioners' claim at page 9 that the Majority Decision conflicted with the <u>Lake County</u> standard regarding their burden. As noted both at page 3 and in footnote 1 of the Opinion, the Petitioners asserted that the waterline provided <u>no</u> benefit to their property. Their brief nowhere challenges that conclusion. Under the issues the Majority

Decision facially and unequivocally states the <u>Petitioners</u> framed, their burden <u>was</u> to prove no benefit. <u>See Reaves</u>, 485 So.2d at 830 (conflict review is limited to "the four corners of the majority decision"). Regardless, even if, <u>arguendo</u>, the Majority Decision might have used a different standard, it expressly concluded the front-foot method adequately allocated the special benefit to the Property. Opinion at 3-5.

#### **CONCLUSION**

The Petitioners utterly fail to show this Court has §3(b)(3) conflict jurisdiction. First, the Majority Decision announced rules of law that followed previously announced rules of law by this Court and other District Courts of Appeal. Second, the Majority Decision applied rules of law to produce results consistent with precedent involving controlling facts. See, e.g., Mancini, 3 12 So.2d 732. The Majority Decision is in lockstep with the authority the Petitioners cited. The Petitioners' request for discretionary conflict review is therefore baseless. The District respectfully requests this Court to refuse to invoke discretionary jurisdiction.